fam
FL

gy

o e S B RS g,

g

>







idea of founding an institution of higher learning in s«ﬁthm
California and urged the scheme upon his settler neighbors.
Of Mayflower stock, Mr. Orafts wes born in Whately, Massa-
chusetta. He left school at the age of thirteen to enter
business in New York eiﬁy and in a few years had built a
prosperous enterprise. He took an setive part in establish-
ing the Five Points MNission, a refuge home for boys on the
east side of Manhuttan.

After seversl years of business activity in New
York and Mew ingland, Mr. Crafts moved west to Michigan
and then, in 1861, to California. In the spring of that
year he went into the then remote San Bernardino Valley and
purchased the iltoona Ranch, twelve miles east of the town
of San Bernardino. He had unbounded faith in the valley's
future as a horticultural center. In place of wheat and |
barley, which at that time were the chief crops of the
region, Mr. Crafts plented subtropieal deeiduous and oitrus
fruits. FHe was & pioneer in introducing irrigation to the
valley. DBeocause of his progressive methods, Myr. Craft's
ranch soon became & horticultural paradise and produced
immense and varied crops. Partly as a result of hh Bue~
eess, neighboring ranches were taken up, and the population
of the surrounding area began to inorease rapidly. The
thriving settlements of Crafton, Lugonia, Riverside, and
Redlands owed mueh of their beginnings to the enterprise




of Mr. Crafts.”

From the date of his entry into the valley,
lir. Crafts took an active interest in the religious and
educational 1ife of t!u‘ conmunity. In this work he wus
associated with Professor and ¥Mrs. Ellison Robbins, pioneer
California educators who had come to the San Bernardine re-
gion in 1858 to teach publiec sehool. Professor Robbins
beceme the first school supsrintendent in the eounty, and
upon his death in 1864, ¥rs. Robbins and Mr. Crafts con~
tinued $o work togethexr in the interests of education.
¥Mrs. Robbins and ¥r. Crafts were married in 1865.3

Mr. and ¥rs. Orafts were alike in tastes, ideals,
and fundamental purposes. One who knew them deseribed their
home as "attrective and very hospitable."® 1In 1872, in re-
sponse to urgent entreaties, thelr altoona Ranch home beocame
a sanatorium snd resort hotel. .8 "Crafton Retreat” the
beautiful place was known throughout the world and was
visited by many celebrated persons.®

srdent Congregationalists, My. and ¥rs. amrﬁ
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were active workers in that church. In 1865 Mr. Crafts
organized a Sunday school, and in 1865 he induced the Home
Missionary Society of San Franeisco to send a Congregational
minister to San Bernapdino. 4s s result, the First Congre~
gational Churech of San Bernardino was organized on Februe

ary 1v, 1867.° For some years the chureh services were held
in the Court House und in a hall owned by Mr. GM}Q; it wes
not uantil 1876 that the church completed 1ts own place of
worship. This edifice, the seeond Protestant church build-
ing in Southern California, was erected on ground donated

by Mr. Grafts.’

A man of strong New England predilections, Mr. Grafts
had a great interest in higher education and had early econ-
ceived the idea of founding & Christian college in Southern
California. Nrs. Crafts, long a teucher herself, actively
shared this interest. They considered such an institution so
be an essential agency in attaining the kind of eiwyilization
they were itrhhaa for in the valley. Both in publie end in
private they kept the proposal before the community and before
the churches.

A% first, however, the possibility of eatablishing




o college in the San Bermardino region scemed remote. The
old Mompmon settlers who came to the valley in 1881 were
 still an importent element in the sixties, and they were
not inclined to aid the propagation of New Hnglund ideas of
religion and education. Oraduslly, the inereasing nunber
of settlers from the stlantic seabourd brought about a de~
cline in the Mormon influence and the growth of a population
more sympathetic to proposals of the type tﬁwto; by
¥r, and Mps. Crefts.

The organization of the First Congregational
Chuyreh of Sen Bernsrdino had been = great step forward in
the drive for a college. Ordeined a deacon of the church
in 1868, Mr. Crafts kept his ideal constantly before this
body. When, in 1869, a district Congregational assoglation
was formed im Sen Bernerdino, Mr. and Mrs. Crafts secured
a provision in the constitution for an Lducation Committee
and the passing of a resolution "looking toward the estab~
. 1ishment of a Christdan Acsdemy."®

Purther impetus to the movement wes given by the
arrival, in 1875, of Rev. James T. Ford %o take up the
pastoral work at the First Congregational Churech. Rev. Ford
was born in Abington, Massachusetts, in 1827, and was a
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m&mfo of Williems College and indover Theologiesal &ﬁ?
nary. W¥rs. Ford wes also a New Englander, and both were
“thoroughly wedded" o New England ideals.” Exposed to thé
contaglous enthusiasm of Mr. and Mrs. Myron Crafts, the new
pastor and his wife were soon ardent advoeates of higher
education in Southern California.

Not until 1883, however, was it considered oppor-
tune to propose in the District Congregational issociation
thet « representative Edusation Committee from the various
churches be clected. By thut date the increased number of
Congregational churches in Southern California and the co=
operative attitude of other sects, particulsrly the WMethodists
and Presbyterians, in educational movements seemed to indicate
that & iaﬂ.un might obtain sufficient support to keep it
operating. Acecordingly, the Association, at a meeting held
in Los angeles, sppointed & permanent Education Committee of
seven members and suthorized 1% to ac¢t for the issociation
on any proposition that might be made for the establishing
of "a Christian Academy or College."*? This action indi~
cated how far towards the ideal of Mr. Crsfts and Mr. Pord
the sssociation hed advanced since 1860, when only the possi-
pility of an academy haed been recognized.

1:: mf.‘gum of Pomons College, 5.




puring the following two years the San chrdw
settlements grew rapidly, and new churches were established.
In 1886 the Iducetion Committee reported to the issoclation
a determination "to establish a college of the New ingland
tm."u The proposal was received .wuh enthusiasn by the
churches, end the lducation Committee was authorized to
solicit funds for a building endowment. ¢

The winter of 1886~-1887 was a partiocularly fortu-
nate period in which to start the work of securing an endow-
ment. It was the time often described as the "boom days"
of Southern Californis. Stimulated by & rete war between
the Southern Pacifiec and Santa Fe railroeds, an avalanche
of people rushed into this region. Hotels and private
homes were filled with meweomers. City streets were con~
gested with roaming erowds, and every incoming train brought
additions to the throngs. It was a period of speculation
almost beyond belief. New enterprises sprang up on every
hand, and real estete prices soared. One phase of the "boom"
was the laying out of may new towns and the projeeting of.
numerous large land schemes. lNowhere was the expansiveness
of thought and sction more noticeable than in the rields
of religion and education. As one man who lived through
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the period remarked ;1%
Churches were springing up in & day
- often one, two, or three - where a
st b S, P
ent denominations were inducements to
purchase property.

There were many proposals for the establishment
of institutions of higher learning, especially by rtuaiau
sects. Often the larger land schemes included plans ‘for
academies and colleges. "It was surprising to see how popu~
lar the idea of higher education had become,” commented one
writer. “"Nothing drew attention and fed the flames of ex-
oitement like the prospect of a college or a university.":d

With such views prevailing, 1t was only netural
that the Congregationsal churches should be enthusiastie over
the plans of the Education Committee. The enthusiasm, in-
deed, was not limited to chureh groups, and & mumber of
communities expressed their interest in the proposal, some
even bidding for the privilege of becoming the site of the
future college.

The first definite bid received by the Zducation

Committee sppeared very attrsotive. The Land Company of
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Beaumont, a village on the Southern Pacific Reilroad some
sixteen miles southesst of Redlands, offered the prospeoct

of generous donations of land to the college if the institu-
tion would locate on the company's trset. On Mareh 31, 1887,
four members of the Committee and Rev. Charles Purt Sumner
visited the ground. They found that the company had already
taken steps to develop and beautify the proposed utg. :

Pine weather and the abundant vegetation of spring
inerensed the attractiveness of Beaumont in the eyes of the
Comuittee, and, as Rev, Sumner later wrote, "all were de-
lighted with the appearance snd the possidilities of the
place . 14 |

The Committee spent the evening around an open fire
in Beaumont's comfortable new hotel, discussing plans for the
future college. Confidence in their enterprise and enthusiasm
for the site they had that day inspected dominated the group.
The next morning they pussed the following mmmtum“

Whereas, the founding of & college
of the New xmm type in mﬂmm Call~
fornia is desirable; and Whereas Deau~
mont offers great ¢ tic advantages,
with the prospect of seocuring donations
of grounds for cempus, and lends esti-
mated to yleld two hnnaxod thousand :

dollars; therefore, Resolved: That the
comuittee view the "Location of the

,il:: ﬂmr. pmmnmmxm 9.
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college at this point with favor, and
will so report to the Association in
May. Also Resolved: That if certain
lands are secured, fulfilling the

above expectations, we are heartily

in favor of locating the eollege at

this point, and will contraet for the
same prior to the meeting of the issoci~
ation if neceasary.

A week later the Committee was invited to inspect
another tract which, if only for sentimental reasons; de-
served careful consideration. It was the spot which Deacon
Crafts and Rev. Ford, during the period when they were still
erusading to secure general acceptance of the idea of a
eollege in Southern Califommia, had selected as the most

" suitable site for the proposed institution.

In 1882 Myron Crafts had coneentrated his interests
on plane for colonizing the eastern San Bernardino Valley
with settlers who would be interested in building up the
country. aequiring 1,840 acres of land near Crafton, he de-
veloped a water mtﬁ and planned a settlement. In laying
out the future townsite, he did mt‘ tTorget his favorite |
project - the Christisn college. He laid aside forty acres
for a campus in what he and Rev. Ford believed was an ideal
loeation on the southwest heights of Lugonia, in what is
now a part of Redlands.l®




, On September 12, 1886, just as the action of the
mum Association seemed about to insure the fruition
of his fondest hope - the building of his long-planned coll ege,
Myron Crafts died.l” To carry out his wishes, however, his
widow, Mrs. E. P. A, Crafts, later of fered to the college the
aoreage laid apart at Lugonia by My. Crafts for the erection
of the institution. Upon inspection of the pmpoﬂy,' the
Bducation Comittee was much impressed by its merits. The
offer included, with the cempus, "a liberal subscription in
land and money, in value estimated at one hundred and eighty
thousend d olls rs. -8

The Committee was much emncoursged by the fine site
offered by Beaumont and Lugonia, but certain of the members
felt thet neither location was ideal. At that time, before
the full development of irrigetion, both localities were con-
sidered to be in what was ealled "the desert,” and they were
also not muy-ucuaim from all parts of Southern Cali~
fornia.

These objections led the Committee to search for
ano ther loeation. They learned of a beautiful and commanding
site on Scanlon Mesa near the foothills five miles north of

17. Tngermoly, Iaarsell's gentuey amale of San Zemertize
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Pomona. The land was reported to be very valuable, and
people interested in bullding s tourist hotel were already
negotiating for it. Convinced that the site was what they
wanted, the Education Committee appealed %o the owner,

¥r. Henry A. Palmer, of Oskland, California. MNr. Palmer
was interested in the movement to establish a Congregational
church at "omona and felt that the duilding of a college
near the town would further the eause of the church. aiec~
cordingly, he donated eighty acres of cholee land. Yorty
adjoining acres were given by "the Misses Wheeler, two
ladies from Boston who were spending the winter in Fomona,"
and a further donation of one thousand dollars was received
from interested people. With the help of the loeal church,
additional subseriptions in land and money were soon re~
ceived from the residents of Pomona and the surrounding
country, until the total offer wes estimated to be equal to
a hundred and sixty thousand Mnur-.” :

In May 1887, all the Congregationsl churches in
the region combined to form the General Assoclation of Con-
gregational Churches of Southern Califernia. The General
Association appointed the Nducation Committee of the Distriect
Assoeiation as its Rducation Committee, adding five new

19. sumner, Zhe Stoxy of Fomona College, 12.




members. The strong committee of twelve thus fomed wes ems
powered to take action on all mtters relating to the location
and organization of the proposed college. In Mﬂiﬂm, they
were instructed to determine the loention within thirty days.

Meanwhile, the Desumont offer had been withdrawn,
and soon afterwards the Lugonia proposition was also retracted.
offers from Pesadena and Riverside were expected, but the
new committee was required to aet quickly and could mi wait
for thas to mature. At a meeting on May 18, 1887, the Com=
mittes voted unamimously to accept the site nesr Pomons if
¥r. Palmer would guarantee a water supply. ine trustees
for the new institution were thenm elected by the Committee
in the following order: Rev, James T. Ford of San Bernsrdine,
Mr. Henry ¥. W. Bent of “asadens, indrew J. Wells of Long
Beach, Mr. Henry A. Palmer of Osklend, Rev. Charles B. Summer
of Pomoma, Rev. Charles B. Sheldon of Pomona, Mr. Seth Rich-
ards of Boston, Massachusetts, Rev. James H. Harwood, D+ Ds,
of San Diege, and Mr., Nathan ¥, Blanchard of Santa Paula.

Teo the nine trustecs already chosen was left the
task of determining the number of members which was to con~
stitute the Board of Trustees and of electing new members
if required. The Committee then voted "that a majority of
the Board of Trustees should always be members of the Con-
gregational churches, and that this provision should be
put in the deed of conveyance." The Committee them
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adjourned gins die.*°

The new Board of Trustees gquiockly took up the task
which had been entrusted to 1t. The number of trustees was
increased to fifteen and new members were elected to rill
the quota. The name ”’Mmm“ was chosen for the new col~
lege, after the town which was to be built up adout the site.
Later this name was "temporarily” changed to "Pomona” as e
concession to the ad jacent city of Pomona. Articles of in-
corporation were then adopted and ordered filed; and on
October 6, 1867, by-laws were drafted and approved. Mr. H. A.
Palmer was elected president of the eorporation; Mr, Natham W.
Flanchard, vice-president; Mr. Charles B. Sheldon, treasurer;
and ¥r. Charles P. Sumner, secretary.

The conditions under which the new officers entered
| upon their duties were not encouraging. The "boom;" :mag
had made the prospeet of a college in the region seem feasi-
ble, had collapsed. The crowds of prospective residents had
returned Fest. Land could mot be zold. Many ‘mixwu enter-
prises, real estate developments, and even houses were
abandoned. TFinancisl fallures and foreclosures on mortgages
were heard of on every hand. The section was in the ni.u%
of distressing financial depression. Appeals for subscrip-
tions and donations for the college fell on deaf ears, for

20. sumner, The Story of Zomona Sollege, 13-14.




there was 11ttle money in eiroulation for any purpose, hows
ever good or great. |

Under these coniitions, nothing could be done
towards the actusl building of the college for six months
after it was incorporated. Mr. Palmer having guaranteed a
water supply, the site near Pomona had been definitely sc-
cepted, but no money could be reised to continue the work.
The Sxecutive Committee of the Board of Trustess, charged
with getting the college into actual operation, began %o
feel that matters were in & desperate state. "A speedy and
nmwm wovement alone,”™ 1t was believed, "could prevent
the nlluiu of the nmwm‘n."n Pinally, the Committee
turned to 1ts secretary, Rev. Charles B. Sumner, and asked
him to assume the duties of 7 inameial secretary and to de-
vote his full time to the business of the college. At the
saorifice of his postorste at the Pilgrim Church in "omona,
Mr., Sumner accepted the appointment om April 1, 1888.

The imstructions of the Bosrd of Trustees required
thet the Ixecutive Committee proceed with the laying out of
the town of Piedmont around the ocollege site, plan a central
building to house the institution, and prepare for the be=
gimning of instruction in the fall of 1888. For this work
there were but meager funds aveilable; dbut, in the words of

21, Sumner, mmuummm 74.
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M¥y. Sumner, tbmmmr”um thing to do - push on jJjust
as fast snd far ss possible, amd collect and put into perma=
nent form every dollar that could possibly be secured, hoping
for future developments. Faith was taxed to the uttermost."%2

In a short timeé after Mr. ﬁmr took over his new
duties, the village of Pledmont was laid out in blocks and
lots, and the campus was plotted. i three-story ‘Wa and
dormitory building was designed, and work on it was begun.
Bricks for the structure were manufactured from elay found
on the campus. Hanchers of the swrounding country loaned
their teams, and many gave their own labor freely to aid in
the excavating and grading. As the work progressed, the en~
thusiasn of the local residents grew, and many donations
began to pour in to aid in the duilding. By the end of the
summey a1l the necessary bricks had been made, the grounds
were graded, and the tmtius&:prgpared.

On September 26, with much ceremony, the corner-
stone of the new building was laild. But on that very day,
unknown to those who held such high hopes for the institu~
tion on its site at Pledmont, events were taking place which
were to bring about a shift in the location of the college.
Proposals were received offering to convey to the school,
on very favorable teyms, ocertain properties in Claremont.

22. sumner, The Story of Pomona Collese, 75.
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A ppecial committees m appointed by the Board of Trustees
to inspect the property, and the Executive Committee was
empowered to act with the inspecting committee in all mat=
ters growing out of the nwttnuom.“
Claremont was a boom town some five miles north
of Pomona. It has been laid out in a tangled wilderness of
stone, cactus, and chaparral with the coming of the Santa Te
Railroad to Los ingeles in 188%7. There was no sign 6: eul ¢4~
vation within miles. The town had only one street worthy
of the name, and its buildings consisted of a railreoad
station, a single residence, a general store, and a few
diminutive Ind ian shacks. In addition, there was a large
resort hotel which had been built in boom days at a cost of
$22,000. ,
The total eollapse of the real estate maorket left
the promoters of "Claremont, the Beautiful” with an empty
hotel bullding and acres of unsold sagebrush on their hands.
Any substantisl settlement of the town might have been de-
layed for years had not Rev. T. C« Hunt, then pastor of the
Congregational Church of Riverside and a member of the
Pomona College Board of Trustees, seen the possibilities of
the place as a location for the school. He realized that
there were not emough funds on hand to complete the building

-
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begun at Pledmont, and he had persistently warned the more
enthusiastic trustees against running into debdt. In the de-
serted hotel he saw a solution of the school's problems, and
he suggested to Mr. Framk A. Miller, part owner of the Pacific
Land Improvement Mny.' that the firm offer the strueture
to the ellege. The offer was made and, after inspection of
the property the special committee of the “oard of Trustees,
accepted. |

As a result of this action, the college received
the Hotel Claremont, the block of land on which 1t stood,
the block east of 1t, and 260 lots in the town of Claremont.
In return the college gave a note, without interest, for
§8,000, to be paid out of the receipts from lote actually
sold. The trustees also agreed to maintain some department
of the college work within the limits of Claremont.

#hile plans were being made for the campus at
Pledmont, preparations for the academic work of the new col=
‘lege were also begun. Rev. Sumner induced Professor ¥rank
Parkhurst Brackett, graduste of Dartmeuth College, olass of
1887, who was teaching at the MePherson icademy in Los ingeles,
to open a private school at Pomona to prepere a selected num-
ber of young people for the formsl opening of Pomona College
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tn the fall of 1888, In January of that year Professor
Brackett opened his school in the chapel of Pilgrim Church
at Pomonaj and in 1894, his students formed the nucleus of
the first class to graduate from Pomona College.>®

The Board of Tmthn had directed that the aca~
demic work of Pomona College should begin in the autumn of
1888, Since the new building at Pledmont could not . possibly
be completed by that time, it was necessary for the 'urtieera '
to secure temporary sccommodations in Pomona. For this pur-
pose, the iyer Cottage, a five-room dwelling on the corner of
White Avenue and Pifth Avenue was secured snd rented.

The tuilding was set in specious grounds, hedged
on all sides with lawns, flowers, and shrubs. Numerous shade,
fruit, and ornamentsl trees added to the besuty of the garden.
A vine-covered arbor furnished a pleasant extra recitation
and study room. "The hedges answered for vaulting bders for
boys and girls, and the broad ntx-ut' was a much-used race
track, also for both sexes."® The interior of the struoture
was simple and well=adapted for school uses. Two connecting
front rooms were converted into a large assembly hall. A
third ohamber became a elass room, another an office, and the

@tlmmufnu ‘_xé‘ mom
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k&iﬁhth. equipped with stove and sink, made a 1nbarata¥y‘roz
scientific study.

The furnishings were few and simple, consisting
only of the bare essentials. There were chairs and tables,
but no floor coverings, curtains, or wall decorations. ZEven
desks and platforms had to be dispensed with, end the only
heat came from the kitchen atove. ¢

With this wnpretentious cottage and garden as 1ts
"gampus,” Pomona College opened its doors on September 12, 1888,
On the moming of that day the trustees, the faculty, a few
parents, and the student body - less than fifty people in all -
gathered in the assembly room for the opening exercises.

About thirty of the group were students, a few of whom had
elready begun preparatory work. Only three were of college
standing.

On behalf of the foard of Trustees, Dr. James H.
Harwood conducted the chapel services. Fe used as his text
the passege Trom the Psalms beginning: "Except the Lord build
the house, they labour in vain that build it." After leading
in prayer, he spoke briefly on the importance of the occasion,
deseribing the college as "but a poor, weak little sapling
as yet; but,” he continued, "1t will grow, and yield fruit

and spread 1ts influence as long as time shall Lnnt.'a’

27. swmner, The Story of Pomons College, 88-89.




After talks by Mr. Thomas Barrows and Rev. c&a‘a‘rlu
B. Sumner, the students were enrolled end classified. The
way was open for ascademic work, and the great dreanm of
Myron H. Crafts was at last realized, two years to the day
after his death. '

One of the students who attended the opening cere-
monies later recorded his impressioms of the oecasion. He

wmm”

I em proud %o have been one of the
illustrious btend who had a hand in the
important function of ting the tree.
It was the greatness of the occasion
that overpowered us, I think, rather
than the magnificence of the spectacle.
For there was no megnificence.

Somewhat differently affected dy the exercises was
one of the members of the first faculty. In later years he
amz“

To most of those who knew of that
gathering in the little rose-embowered
cottage; to some even of those who were

1%, little signirficence was at=
ached to the oceasion. And they would
have smiled indulgently if they
known -of the visions and the faith of
the few who were even then looking far
into the future. But we spent little
time then dreaming of the future; there
were other things to do.

Pomona College was peculiarly fortunate in seleeting

28. Sumner | 0llesxe
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 professors, especially the earlier teachers who molded
Christian cheracter and developed high educational standards.
The six teachers who constituted the faculty when olasses
opened in the Ayer Cottage were Rev. E. C. Norton, M.i.,
Principal of the Preparstory Department and Teacher of Greek;
¥. P. Brackett, B.i., Teacher of Mathematies and Lating

Mrs. E. A, Storrs, Teacher of English and Science; Niss Edith
Hlades, Teacher of Cerman; Miss Coribel Stites, Tu;her of
Drawing and Painting; and Miss Mamie Celdwell, Teacher of
P4ano, Harmony, and Theory. ‘

Puring the first term, nearly all of the students
were in the Preparatory Department, but the goal of an ex»
tended course of instruction on the collegiate level was
constantly kept in mind. The sequisition of the new campus
at Claremont and the news that the school had a btuilding of
its own awaiting use during the next semester, increased the
enthusiasm of students and timuy alike. Before the term
closed "plans were discussed for a literary soeliety, for a
paper, for a Christian Assoeietion and for athletics; in
faot, for nearly the whole gamut of cellege utiﬂﬂu."”

In speaking of the work sccomplished during the
brief momths in the Ayer Cottage, Professor Drackett

v
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later said;®d

~ In these small beginnings were the
germs of the college with all its de~
partuents of which we now sce & some~
what larger development. In the classes
in Latin and Greek Lessons, in Algebra
and Ceometry, in English Grammsyr and
nited States History were the begin-~
nings of these deps nts: Latin and
Greek, Mathematics and Ingineering,
%un and mu::y and E:»Mu..

ydern Luﬁ:u 1 partments were repre-
sented in German elass of Mrs. Lewis
(then Miss Blades) who had Just returned
from W Art and Yusic were also
taught and the kitchem with its tadle
and sink constituted the laborato
wherein the first experiments in “hysics
were performed. Practical raulics
began when the basement was flooded and
Parker with his meager furniture floated
around on the c¢ellar floor. The germs
of Blology might be found in the hortie~
gultural studies among the fruits and
flowers and the vines that covered the
house and well. Athletic sports, orgen~
ized and disorganiszed, grew out of the
baseball games and hallowe'en soraps with
neighboring townies.

Although Pemona College ocgupied the iyer Cottage
for only one semester, the work which was done there greatly
influenced the future development of the institution. The
importance of this initial period is best told in the words
of leve Charles B, Sumner, the beloved "Father of Pomona
College." He wrote:°%

This first tem, in a hired house,
was & success. Its success, however,

:' &f&'}“ o;a;.ﬁ%ﬁ}?sa: Zomopa College Juarterly Magae~
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was mt g0 much in itself, in a single
term of uhn).{ it was in its educa~
tive and formative work, in crystel-
lizing the nucleus of a college, and
in developing confidence in the m
Probably not more than half a dozen o
the naﬂnm- had previously any daﬂ.n!.'u

e of ta a college course of
ﬁn Assoclation is a strong bond,

nﬂr the few who were decided
mttivﬂ.r on & ¢ollege course were
strong, leading characters from Chris-
tian M&hm But more than sll elsé
was it this common, universal enthusi-
asm for what wes to become a great
institution which drew and held the
gtudents. It was during that first

i, and ever has been, one great

source of Pomona‘'s strength.

In January 186890, Pomona College transferred its
work to the new campus at Claremont. At that time 1t was

intended to build the preparatory school at the new location

and to move the collegiate department dack to the original
site at "ledmont as soon as possible. Meanwhile, however,
work on the Scanlon Mesa bdbuilding had been discontinued,
and 1t was never resumed. At a meeting of the Board of
Trustees in the winter of 1892-1895, 1t was decided that
the preparatory and college departments should mot be sepa=

AS a4 conseguence, the site at Pledmont was returned

to iin donors, and Claremont was made the permanent home of

the entire institution. By this time, the name of "Pomona
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College” had become so definitely fixed that 1t was retained
in spite of the change in loeation. ,

At Claremont the school enjoyed a rapid and steady
growth. 4s the school developed, so did the town-site of
Claremont. In a dozen yéau, ell doubts as to the future
of the settlement had vanisheds The convenient location and
the fine climate attracted numbers of permanent residents,
and soon tree-lined streets and attructive homes covered
Wwhat had once been a desert wasteland. "Claremont, the
Beautiful,” was ot last 2 reslity snd no longer merely a
deseription of a promoter's amm“

At the time of the first commencement, in 1894,
the gradunting cless of Pomona College numbered but Qlam,
and the total enrollment wes forty-seven. Ny 1815 the
student body had increased to approximately 750, at about
which figure it hes been held ever since.3® Along with the
growth Qr the enrollment hus gone a corresponding expansion
of the physical plent of the college. ilded by generous
donations, the small grounds of 1889 have been extended
into an ample campus of 120 aeres, with beautiful buildings
which, in 1937, were valued at §1,839,918+. By that:same

é4. Yor a history of the growth of clnzwg;z% Brackets,
‘ romons Vi ¢ L8  OTNL8 - *
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year the endowment fund hsd reached a total of ea.m,aw;”

As an educational institution, Pomona College
ranks with the foremost in the West and is sending forth
gradus tes, both men and women, of strength, culture, and
honor. TFrom the very begimning, the school has maintained
a reputstion for interest in thorough seholarship rather
than in lange numbers. The emphasis has always bdeen on
giving a broad and inclusive education, and 1t has Qat ate
tempted to become a professional .mx."’

The fulfillment of these educational 1deals has,

' from time to time, drought about changes in the organization
of the college. It was early felt that the preparstory work
wes hindering the development of the colleglate courses. Ac=-
cordingly, when, in the first decade of the presemt century,
the completeness of the State provision for secondary educa-
tion and the establishment of a publie high school in
Claremont gave assurance that students would be adequotely
prepered for eollege~level work, Pomona dropped its prepara=
tory school. Zven earlier, in 1898, the srticles of In-
gorporation had been amended so that all reference to the
chureh membership of the trustees was omitted. In thus
doing away with denominationalism, Pomona helped ploneer
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‘the way towards a greater unity of educational effort in
Southern California."® |
In 1925, the demands for expansion led to a radi-
eal change in the organization of the school. Under the
leadership of President James A. Slaigdell, a group of af-
filiated colleges was planned, in which the advantages of
the small colleges would be retained while still making
possible the guthering together of the equipment which is
usually available only at large universities. To this end
"Claremont Colleges"” was incorporated on October 14, 1925,
and two yeurs later Seripps College was opened as an afe-
filiated but separate college for women. Zach of the three
institutions, Pomona, Seripps, and Claremont, which make
up Claremont Colleges is independent, having Ha own board
of trustees and fauculty, but all three cooperate in the
establishment of certain mutusl facilities such as the
central libreyy, common business offices, and an auditorium.
Certain activities, such as the summer school and graduate
and reseayrch work are carried on in em;perutmn.m
 Although the present Pomona coixaaa represents
such a great advance over the primitive beginnings in the




Ayer Cottage in 1888, the value of the educational standards
set up by the work of those first months has never been for-
gotten. On October 14, 1937, on the occasion of the fiftieth
anniversary of the chartering of Tomona College, the Histori-
eal Society of Pomona Valley, in cooperation with the City of
Pomona and the Pilgrim Church, pladed a bronze marker in front
of the little cottage which was the institution's ti;ut home .
Through the interest of various eivic groups, the wnm;
was registered as State Historieal Landmark Pumber 289 on

yune 27, 1988.4° '
40 ©3 (Los Angeles, California), October 15, 1987;
‘ thwu. Department of Natural Resources and

the State Park Commission in cooperstion with the California
State Chamber of Commerce, HReport lio. Iwenty, 1.
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